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SUMMARY

George A. Davis House/Mrs. Webster Barnes' House
1000 Glenville Road
Churchville, MD 21028

HA-147 , HA 148

These 2 stone structutes - one a dwelling, the other a kitchen and
servants' quarters - were probably built between 1814 and 1835 by either
William Cox or George C. Davis. Davis purchased the property, which
included a sawmill and a gristmill, from William Cox's executors in 1835,
and his house and mi1l are indicated on the 1858 and 1878 Maps. (Although
there are no signs. of the mill anymore, it existed until at Teast 1932.)

The house is a good example of the stone bank house built frequently
in this area, and the survival of the kitchen building, which may predate
the house, is worthy of note, The stuccoed wing on the West end of the
house is a modern addition and the interior of the house has been sub-
stantially remodelled.
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DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL {IF KNOWN) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

These two rubblestone structures - one a dwelling, one a kitchen - are located at
the northeast eorner of the intersection of Glenville & Cool Branch Roads, near Church-
ville.

The two story, gable-roofed dwelling (HA-148) measuring 18 feet by 24 feet, faces
south and is three bays wide and one room deep with a 1-1/2 story concrete block addition
on the west end. The house is set into a hill so that the south side has a full ground
story with a center entrance flanked by one window on each side, and a two-story, three
bay wide shed-roofed porch spans the first and second stories of the south facade. The
latter is symmetrically arranged with 6/6 sash windows with Touvered shutters in each
of the three bays of both stories and an entrance in the first story center bay. The
door is flanked by pilasters and has splayed stuccoed jambs. A single brick chimney is
located inside the east end.

The interior has been remodelled drastically, obscuring the original detail and
configuration of the house. The mantel in the east room has a cornice composed of a
fillet-cyma recta, smaller cyma reversa, & fillet, and the architrave has a Tudor arch
design.

The 1-1/2-story building (HA-147) is located northeast of the house. Measuring
15 feet bv 19 feet, this structure faces west and has a shed-roofed porct west side ,whese
siepe-continves—the—roof—line,—spanning Ehe foundations of an unidentified stome dependency
can be seen at the north end. An interior brick chimney is located inside the north
end. Windows have 6/6 sash and plain square cut trim.

The entrance is located in the south bay of the west side, flanked on the north
by a window. The interior has a fireplace in the north wall with a winder stair in the
northwest corner. There are two rooms in the second story, one with a hole for a stove.
The basement, entered from the east, has openings in both the east and west sides. Those
in the east have been blocked up; those in the west have diamond-shaped holes for bars.
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

These two structures - a dwelling & kitchen*& were probably built between 1814 &
1835, although superficially their appearance suggests an earlier constructjon. In 1835,
George C. Davis purchased the property of William Cox, deceased, for $4000.1 This in-
cluded almost 200 acres of "Westwood", "Westwoods Beginning Improved", and "Aquila's
Inheritance", most of which had been inherited by William Cox from his father, William
Cox, Sr. in 1781. He also purchased 18 acres from Samuel Cox for $200 at that time.Z
Neither the 1798 nor the 1814 Tax List indicate that William Cox owned buildings of
these dimensions. In 1798, William Cox in the Susquehanna Hundred owned 89 acres, a
28'x22' dwelling, 616 sq. ft. kitchen with cellar, stone(20x20), cellar (15x12), stable,
Tog (12x12) poultry house, wood (12x12). Building value $275; Land value $958.50;
total property value: $1233.50. In 1814, William Cox in the 3rd District owned 180
acres, a 27x27 2-story stone house, a 20'x18' kitchen, grist mi1l 40'x30', 2-story stone
sawmill 45'x12', altogether valued at $3600. The dwelling discussed here measures
18'x24', the kitchen building 15'x19'.

The two buildings although not necessarily contemporaries, may have been built after
William Cox took out an $8000 mortgage in 1823.3 Or they may not have been built until
the ownership of George C. Davis; although the $4000 price tag suggests substantial
improvements already on the property when he purchased it. The 1858 Jennings & Herrick
Map 1ists two buildings in approximately this location belonging to G. Davis.

Susanna Roberts, Dr. Thomas Roberts' wife, had inherited the property from her father
George C. Davis, who died, intestatey around 1870. She and per husband owned the 208
acre farm until 1914, when they sold it to James F. Cragger.® In 1922, they leased the
dwelling house back and the right to use the stable, the 1ot called "the springhouse lot
or field", and the ram and spring that supplied the house with water.® In 1922, Katharine
E. Coale, wife of William Coale, purchased these 208 acres plus several hundred more
amassing a total of 485 acres, which was sold to Fred and Jessie Vogel in 1935,7 and then
broken up in 1953.8 For a long period in this century, much of the property along this
Eortion of Glenville Road belonged to Westwood Manor, and the houses served as tenant

ouses.

It is unfortunate that the interior of the house has been remodelled to conceal much
of its earlier detail, but the survival of the house with its kitchen building is rela-
tively rare in Harford County, where kitchens were generally of less durable construction
than the dwellings and few survived after their obsolescence. The configuration of the
kitchen with one room downstairs and two rooms upstairs, and the presence of diamond-
shaped bars in the basement windows imply self-sufficiency and, hence, an earlier in-
dependent existence prior to the construction of the house. Historical records do not
necessarily bear this out, neither do they exclude the possibility, however. William
Cox, Sr. refers to numerous dwellings in his Will (1781), and it is very possible that
-he 1798 Tax List missed one or two.
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MRS. WEBSTER BARNES HOUSE
HA-147

Statement of Significance (Cont.)

Note should be taken of a mill in this area, owned and operated by George C. Davis that
no longer stands. The 1858 and 1878 Map both indicate its presence on the north side of
Glen yille Road, and it may have existed prior to 1781 when William Cox, Sr. left to his son,
Will7am Cox, "the houses, out houses, grist mill, malt house, brew house, sawmill, and houses
contigzous thereto..." on "Westwood", "Westwoods Beginning Improved", and "Aquillas Inherit-
ance". *According to Mary Bristow, who is writing a book about Harford County Mills, the
mill went out of operation when Dr. Thomas Roberts owned the property (i.e. by 1914). Ms,
Bristow also reports traces of the mill race on the Unbarger's farm (William Woolsey Farm.)

Liber HD 18, Folio 275.

Liber HD 18, Folio 276.

Liber HD 7, Folio 53.

Will Records - Liber AJ 2, Folio 92.
Liber JAR 142, Folio 459,

Liber DGW 178, Folio 217,

Liber DGW 208, Folio 48.

Liber GRG 388, Folio 516.

O~NOO W~

*William Cox's Will is one of the most enjoyable: He begins ingenuously, "Know ye all men
by these presents that I, William Cox, of Harford County, being through mercy favored with
a good degree of health, excepting a horseness from a cold..." and refers to the plantation
his son Johri Tives on called "the peeled egg". His wife, Mary, was British and had inherited
an estate in England near Staines in Middlesex and Egham Hithe in Surry, which William Cox
directed to be sold rather than go to his oldest son (John) as laws and customs dictated.
Cox stipulated that his wife was to have whichever dwelling house she wanted.



HA-147, 148
ADDENDUM

William Cox took out a writ of ad quod damnum "on a run of Water called
Spring Run upon the Draughts of Deer Creek," August 5, 1751, The land was
part of Wests Beginning and Wests Wood and in possession of William Cox

and valued atX 16-5 plus quit rents of 8 pence half farthing, also 3.75
acres of Aquillas Inheritance, owned by Aquilla Hall and valued at L 3-15
plus quit rents of 2 1/2 pence. Chancery Records, Liber I.R. 5:30,37. ( See
OHH, p. 29 for plat showing Aquilla's Inheritance tract.)

"Cox's Mi1l Run" was mentioned in boundary agreement of 1770 (JGL L: 537)
and it was near the Great Road in 1787 (L:536). The former property of
William Cox was conveyed to son William and Israel in 1794 (L:252).

Samuel Cox, executor of William Cox (Jr.), advertised a stone mill, 3
stories, 40 x 40, with 1 pair of French burrs and 1 of corn stones; a
frame building a quarter mile downstream contained a sawmill. The
gristmill was large enough to convert to cotton manufacturing; the

works was 28 miles from Baltimore, 5 from tidewater. The auction was set
for Hanna Tavern, Herberts X Roads (present Churchville), Hartford
Republican and People's Advocate, February 26, 1835. Purchaser was
George C. Davis {HB 18:2 . e sawmill deed mentioned Quarry Branch.

The 1850 census listed George C. Davis water mill worth $2000 with 1
employee and output of 600 bbl meal and flour ($4000). The 1858

Herrick map showed G. Davis mill on present Cool Branch Road (north side)
and east bank of Mill Brook.

This mi1l was leased about 1876 by Miss Davis to a Mr., Parker, whose employed
miller was H.K. Mitchell, Sr. The property later belonged to Dr. Roberts.
The 1880 census showed Mrs. J.A. Roberts custom mill on Davis Run with

$3000 investment, 1 employee, 3 run of stones, and 50 bu/diem maximum.

A 21-foot fall drove a 14.5 hp, 15-inch turbine at 414 rpm. Out put was

600 bb1 flour, 18.5 tons meal, and 18.7 tons feed ($8000). The place

belonged to Mrs. Vogel when mentioned in a letter from Roscoe C. McNutt

to Aegis, February 12, 1932.
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 NATIONAL REGISTER VERIFICATION _

12. STATE LIAISON OFFICER CERTIFJCA11O

As the designated State Liaison Officer for the Na-

tional Historic Preservation Act of 1966 (Public Law
89-665), I hereby nominate this property for inclusion
in the National Register and certify that it has been

evaluated according to the criteria and procedures set
forth by the National Park Service.
level of significance of this nomination is:

I hereby certify that this property is included in the

National Register.

The recommended = 3 - =
Chief, Office of Archeology and Historic Preservation
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Date
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Keeper of The National Register
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®)ere 428/103
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(©6RG 351/515
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SWC 235/81

MRS. WE
T

October 12, 1973

November 13, 1961

January 4, 1955

November 23, 1953

February 3, 1953

December 27, 1950

November 30, 1935

February 12, 1935

BSTER BARNES HOUSE
itle Search

HA-147, 148

Grantor:
Grantee:
Acreage:

Grantor:

Grantee:
Acreage:

Grantor:
Grantee:

Acreage:

Grantor:
Grantee:
Acreage:

Grantor:
Grantee:
Acreage:

Grantor:
Grantee:

Acreage:

Grantor:
Grantee:
Acreage:

Mortgagor:
Mortgagee:
Sum:
Acreage:
(1)

(2)

Nancy Webster Barnes
Robert A. & Leslie E. Frazer
5 Acres

Guy Randolph & Carolyn Fielder, et
al

Nancy Webster Barnes

5 Acres

Donald B. & Lola Mae Weaver

Guy Randolph & Carolyn Fielder,

et al

292.2 Acres - portion of "Westwood"

Eugene & Billie Mae Todd
Donald B, & Lecla Mae Weaver
292.2 Acres

Mary E. Lieske, widow, et al
Eugene & Billie Mae Todd
428.7 Acres

The Manor Co.

Henry E. Lieski & wife

Carl A. Anderson

Less mansion-house & 58.2 Acres,
but including livestock, farm
implements, equipment & supplies
thereon = 486.9 Acres

Jessie Moreland Vogel
The Manor Co.
486.9 Acres

Jessie Moreland Vogel
Frank H. Jacobs, Jr.

$26,000

486.9

Evergreen = 96A, 1R, 34p
Westwood = 55A, 1R, 1R
Evergreen = 50.42 Acres
Millbrook & Westwood = 283 Acres

2nd parcel thereof contains
2.864 Acres

(3) 10A, 1R, 1
(4) .278 Acres



&) DG 208/48

@ DGW 178/218

(1D paw 1787217
(Lease)

® pew 178/216
(Mort. default)

(%) JAR 142/459

(9 HDG 32/104

MRS. WEBSTER BARNES HOUSE
Title Search (Cont.)
HA-147, 148

Decémber 31, 1927

June 10, 1922

June 10, 1922

June 3, 1922

January 13, 1914

May 30, 1846

(Page 2)

Grantor:
Grantee:
Acreage:

Grantor:
Grantee:
Acreage:

1st part:
2nd part:
Sum:

Grantor:
Grantee:
Sum:

Acreage:

Grantor:
Grantee:
Sum:

Acreage:

Grantor:

Grantee:
Sum:
Acreage:

Katherine E. & William F. Coale

Fred A. Vogel

485.2 Acres - except family bury-
ing ground

Stevenson A. Williams & wife

Ariel E,

Katherine E. Coale, wife of

Wm. F.

"Millbrook" & "Westwood" = 283 Ac.

Stevenson A, Williams

Dr. Thomas H. Roberts

$120/yr.

-the right to use and occupy dwell-
ing house now occupied by him, the
stable and other out buildings,
the yard and garden likewise
appurtenant thereto and the lot
called "the springhouse lot or
field" extending from the public
road to the fence running from
the old dam to H. D. Coale's
woods, and also the use of the
ram & the spring that now supply
the dwelling with water.

Noble L. Mitchell, Attorney
Stevenson A. Williams

$9255

"MiT11 Brook" & "Westwood"
283 Acres

Thos. H. & Susannah D. Roberts
James F. Cragger
$9900
tract on which grantors now reside
"Westwood" or "Mill Brook" =
208 Acres

Also "Westwood" = 75 Acres
Total = 283 Acres

(inherited from George C. Davis)

Henry H. Harbaugh of Carroll Co.,
Md., admin. of Samuel Cox, dec.
George C. Davis

$3000

Aquilla's Inheritance or Westwood
?Wm. Finney to Samuel Cox -

HD 11/429)

(Westwood = HD 14/219)

Lands in mortgage from Wm. Cox to
Samuel Cox - HD 7/53



HDG 32/104 (Cont.)

(9 HD 18/282
(Mortgage)

(o HD 18/275

(RHD 18/276

fipho 14/219

@DNi]] Records
AJ 2/92

MRS. WEBSTER BARNES HOUSE
Title Search (Cont.)
HA-147, 148

May 30, 1846
August 29, 1835

August 29, 1835

August 26, 1835

April 23, 1831

1781

(Page 3)

Acreage:

Mortgagor:
Mortgagee:
Sum:
Acreage:

Grantor:

Grantee:
Sum:
Acreage:

Grantor:
Grantee:
Sum:

Acreage:

Grantor:
Grantee:
Sum:

Acreage:

Will of Wi

Wm. Finney to Wm. Cox - HD 10/1315

George C. & Jane Davis
Samuel Cox

$3000

Aquila's Inheritance
Westwood

Samuel Cox, exec. of Will of Wm.
Cox, dec.

George C. Davis

$4000

Mort. from Wm. Cox to Samuel Cox
HD 7/53 & Westwood - Wm. Finney
to Wm. Cox-HD 10/315

Samuel & Eliza Cox

George C. Davis

$200

"Aquilla's Inheritance" or "West-
wood" = 1 Acre 14.6 p; 17 Acres
10 p

Herman Stump of Stafford
Samuel Cox

$100

"Westwood" = 17 A, 10 p

11iam Cox
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George C. Davis House
(Mrs. Webster Barnmes Kitchen)

1000 Glenville Road
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Harford County Dept«of "Plantfri ;__Q‘r}-_ Y

rom aerial ph&tos taken March, 1990
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) Dr. Robert House_ ———
(Mrs. Webster Barnes House)

1000 Glenville Road (=] o O
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Mrs. Webster Barnes' House

& Kitchen HA-147, HA-148
Churchville, Md. 21028

Natalie Shivers 4/80

South






B

Mrs. Webster Barnes' House &
Kitchen

.Churchv‘l‘l'le1 Md. 21028

Natalie Shivers

4/80
North Side House
West Side Kitchen







Mrs. Webster Barnes' House &
Kitchen

Chu]'-chvi'l'le Md. 21028

HA-147, HA-T48

Natalie Shivers

4/80
Northwest-Kitchen
North-House
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